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Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé
(1860–1925)

Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé – âèäàòíèé óêðà¿íñüêèé àðõ³òåêòîð, ³ì’ÿ ³ 
ä³ÿëüí³ñòü ÿêîãî ïðèçàáóò³ ñüîãîäí³.

Íàðîäèâñÿ Ã. Ïåæàíñüêèé ó ñåë³ Ï÷àíè íèí³ Æèäà÷³âñüêîãî 
ðàéîíó Ëüâ³âñüêî¿ îáëàñò³. Çàê³í÷èâ ã³ìíàç³þ ó Ñòðèþ; àðõ³òåêòóðíå 
â³ää³ëåííÿ Ëüâ³âñüêî¿ ïîë³òåõí³÷íî¿ øêîëè; Ö³ñàðñüêî-êàéçåð³âñüêèé 
³íñòèòóò ó Â³äí³, äå îòðèìàâ äèïëîì ³íæåíåðà-àðõ³òåêòîðà. Ðîçïî-
÷àâøè ðîáîòó â Ëüâ³âñüêîìó ìàã³ñòðàò³, çãîäîì ïåðåéøîâ íà äåðæàâíó 
ñëóæáó â íàì³ñíèöòâî, äå ïðàöþâàâ ðàäíèêîì ³ç áóä³âíèöòâà äî 1924 ð. 
×ëåí Ïîë³òåõí³÷íîãî òîâàðèñòâà ó Ëüâîâ³ ó 1888–1890 ðð., à â³ä 
1893 ð., â³ä 1896 ð. ìàâ ñòàòóñ «ïîæèòòºâîãî ÷ëåíà». 1895 ð. îáðàíèé 
äî ïðàâë³ííÿ Òîâàðèñòâà. Îäèí ³ç çàñíîâíèê³â Óêðà¿íñüêîãî òåõí³÷íîãî 
òîâàðèñòâà, ïðîòÿãîì äåÿêîãî ÷àñó éîãî ãîëîâà. Äèðåêòîð Ñòðàõîâîãî 
òîâàðèñòâà “Äí³ñòåð” (³ç 22 ëèñòîïàäà 1917 äî 1918 ð.). Â³äâ³äóâàâ 
çàñ³äàííÿ ÍÒØ, Óêðà¿íñüêå ïåäàãîã³÷íå òîâàðèñòâî, ÷ëåí Êóðàòîð³¿ 
Íàðîäíîãî äîìó òà Ñòàâðîï³ã³éñüêîãî ³íñòèòóòó ó Ëüâîâ³. ×ëåí æóð³ 
êîíêóðñó íà ïðîåêò áóä³âë³ Ëüâ³âñüêîãî óí³âåðñèòåòó (1913). Ïîìåð ó 
Ëüâîâ³, ïîõîâàíèé íà Ëè÷àê³âñüêîìó öâèíòàð³ (ïîëå ¹ 75).

Íà äóìêó ñó÷àñíî¿ ìèñòåöòâîçíàâ÷î¿ ïîëüñüêî¿ êðèòèêè, Ãðèãîð³é 
Ïåæàíñüêèé íàëåæàâ äî ïåðøî¿ õâèë³ óêðà¿íñüêèõ àðõ³òåêòîð³â, ùî 
çàéìàëèñü ïîøóêàìè òðàäèö³éíèõ íàö³îíàëüíèõ âèÿâ³â, ùî ïðèâåëî äî 
ïîÿâè óêðà¿íñüêîãî ñòèëþ.

Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé áóâ ðàäíèêîì ï³ä ÷àñ áóä³âíèöòâà óêðà¿íñü-
êèõ óñòàíîâ ó Ëüâîâ³ é ÷èñëåííèõ íàðîäíèõ äîì³â.

Êð³ì òîãî, Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé âèãîòîâèâ áàãàòî ïëàí³â íàðîä-
íèõ äîì³â, áóäèíê³â äëÿ óêðà¿íñüêèõ óñòàíîâ òà öåðêîâ. Âîäíî÷àñ, â³í 
ñïðèÿâ ñïîðóäæåííþ áóä³âåëü òåàòðàëüíèõ ³ ìóçè÷íèõ çàêëàä³â.

Ïåðøîþ òàêîþ áóä³âëåþ, ïîâ’ÿçàíîþ ³ç óêðà¿íñüêîþ ìóçèêîþ ³ 
òåàòðîì, äî ñïîðóäæåííÿ ÿêî¿ äîëó÷èâñÿ Ã. Ïåæàíñüêèé, áóâ Íàðîäíèé 
ä³ì ïðè âóëèö³ Â³ðìåíñüê³é, ÿêèé ñïðîåêòóâàëè Ñ. Ãàâðèøêåâè÷ ³ 
Â. Øì³äò ó 1857 ð.

Íàñòóïíîþ åïîõàëüíîþ ñïîðóäîþ, äî ÿêî¿ áóëè ïðè÷åòí³ 
²âàí Ëåâèíñüêèé òà Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé, áóâ áóäèíîê Ðóñüêîãî 
(Óêðà¿íñüêîãî) òåàòðó. Çàïðîïîíóâàâ ïîáóäóâàòè éîãî Þë³àí Ëàâ-
ð³âñüêèé ó 60-ò³ ðîêè Õ²Õ ñò.

Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé äîëó÷èâñÿ äî ï³äãîòîâêè ïëàí³â áóä³âë³ 
Óêðà¿íñüêîãî òåàòðó.
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Âæå â 1910 ð. ãðóïà ï³ä êåð³âíèöòâîì ²âàíà Ëåâèíñüêîãî âèãî-
òîâèëà ïëàíè ³ ìàêåò Óêðà¿íñüêîãî òåàòðó ³ ïðåçåíòóâàëà éîãî íà 
çàãàëüíîïîëüñüê³é àðõ³òåêòóðí³é âèñòàâö³. Îäíàê öþ ðîáîòó ãàëüìóâàâ 
îï³ð êîíñåðâàòèâíî íàëàøòîâàíî¿ ÷àñòèíè ïîëüñüêîãî íàñå ëåííÿ 
Ëüâîâà òà Ãàëè÷èíè.

Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé áóâ ïðè÷åòíèé äî ñïîðóäæåííÿ áóäèíêó 
Ìóçè÷íîãî ³íñòèòóòó ³ì. Ì. Ëèñåíêà ó Ëüâîâ³. Ïëàíè äëÿ áóä³âíèöòâà 
³íñòèòóòó âèãîòîâèëè ². Ëåâèíñüêèé òà àðõ³òåêòîðè éîãî áþðî. 
Çâîäèëè áóäèíîê ó 1913–1916 ðð.

Ìóçè÷íèé ³íñòèòóò ³ì. Ì. Ëèñåíêà â³ä³ãðàâ íàäçâè÷àéíó ðîëü ó 
æèòò³ óêðà¿íñüêîãî ìèñòåöüêîãî ñåðåäîâèùà.

Ï³ñëÿ ïåð³îäó âèçâîëüíèõ çìàãàíü óêðà¿íñüêîãî íàðîäó ³ ¿õíüî¿ 
ïîðàçêè óêðà¿íñüêà ãðîìàäñüê³ñòü çâåðíóëà óâàãó íà ìèñòåöüêó ñôåðó.

Ñåðåä ð³çíîá³÷íèõ ïîðèâàíü ó Ëüâîâ³ ç 1921 ð. øèðèâñÿ ðóõ çà 
óêðà¿íñüêèé òåàòð. Ñïî÷àòêó òåàòðàëüíèìè ñïðàâàìè ó Ëüâîâ³ 
çàéìàëîñÿ òîâàðèñòâî “Óêðà¿íñüêà áåñ³äà”. Ó Ëüâîâ³ ðîçãîðíóëàñÿ 
íåáà÷åíà êàìïàí³ÿ ç ï³äòðèìêè óêðà¿íñüêîãî òåàòðàëüíîãî ðóõó.

Ïåðøèìè áåççàñòåðåæíî ï³äòðèìàëè öþ íîâó óêðà¿íñüêó ³äåþ 
íå ò³ëüêè óêðà¿íñüê³ àêòîðè, àëå ³ ïðåäñòàâíèêè ìèñòåöüêèõ ê³ë – 
àðõ³òåêòîðè, õóäîæíèêè, ìóçèêàíòè, à òàêîæ ñâÿùåíèêè òîùî.

Ó 1923 ð. â³äáóëèñü óñòàíîâ÷³ çáîðè íîâîãî òîâàðèñòâà – 
êîîïåðàòèâó “Óêðà¿íñüêèé òåàòð”, éîãî äèðåêòîðîì ñòàâ Î. Äðèìàëèê, 
ÿêèé ðîçãîðíóâ åíåðã³éíó ä³ÿëüí³ñòü. Äî òîâàðèñòâà äîëó÷àëîñü âñå 
á³ëüøå óêðà¿íö³â.

Íà ïî÷àòêàõ ö³º¿ âèäàòíî¿ àêö³¿ ÷ëåíàìè êîîïåðàòèâó “Óêðà¿íñü-
êèé òåàòð” áóëè Ã. Ïåæàíñüêèé, ². Òóðêåâè÷, Ì. Ñòå ôàí³âñüêèé. Ï³çí³-
øå äî Òîâàðèñòâà óâ³éøëè Ì. Ãàë³âåé, Î. Ìåæàëüñêèé, âñòóïèâøè 
ó êîîïåðàòèâ “Óêðà¿íñüêèé òåàòð”.

Ïîäàëüøèé ðîçâèòîê êîîïåðàòèâó “Óêðà¿íñüêèé òåàòð” ïåðåð-
âàëè ïîä³¿ ïåðåä Äðóãîþ ñâ³òîâîþ â³éíîþ.

Ïðîòÿãîì ìàéæå 50 ðîê³â Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé áîðîâñÿ çà 
óêðà¿íñüê³ ìóçè÷íî-òåàòðàëüí³ êîìïëåêñè, ³ éîãî ì³ñöå ó öèõ ïðîöåñàõ 
íåîáõ³äíî íàëåæíî îö³íèòè ñüîãîäí³.

Ãðèãîð³é Ïåæàíñüêèé çàéìàâñÿ áóä³â íèöòâîì ³ ó ñôåð³ ñïîð-
òèâíîãî óêðà¿íñüêîãî æèòòÿ. Éîìó íàëåæèòü ÷åñòü ñïî ðóäæåííÿ 
ïåðøîãî â Óêðà¿í³ ôóòáîëüíîãî ñòàä³îíó â 1894 ð. íà ïëîùàõ 
Êðàéîâî¿ âèñòàâêè ó Ëüâîâ³. Ç ö³º¿ ñïîðóäè ðîçïî÷àëîñü ïîøèðåííÿ 
ôóòáîëó íà óêðà¿íñüêèõ çåìëÿõ òà ñõ³äíîºâðîïåéñüêèõ òåðèòîð³ÿõ 
ó ÕÕ ñò.
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Hryhorii Pezhanskyj (1860–1925)

First of all, it should be noted that Hryhorii Pezhanskyj was an 
outstanding Ukrainian architect who is almost forgotten at present as well 
as his architectural work.

H. Pezhanskyj was born in the village Pchany, now Zhydachiv district, 
Lviv region. He graduated from the gymnasium (high school) in Stryi, the 
architectural department of the Lviv Polytechnic School, and the Imperial 
and Royal Polytechnic Institute in Vienna where he received his diploma of 
engineer-architect. H. Pezhanskyj started working in Lviv magistrate, then 
he joined the civil service in the Viceroyalty, where he worked as advisor in 
construction until 1924. He was a member of the Polytechnic Society in Lviv 
during 1888–1890 and from 1893, having the status of "a lifetime member" 
from 1896. In 1895 he was elected to the Board of Directors of the Society. 
He was one of the founders of the Ukrainian Technical Society, serving as 
its head for some time. His activities also included those of Director of the 
Dniester insurance company (from 22 November 1917 to 1918), a visitor to 
the Shevchenko Scientific Society, and to the Ukrainian Pedagogical Society, 
a member of the Curatorias of the People's House and of the Stauropegion 
Institute in Lviv, and a member of the jury for the building project of Lviv 
University (1913). H. Pezhanskyy died in Lviv and was buried in the Lychakiv 
cemetery, field number 75.

According to modern Polish art-criticism Hryhorii Pezhanskyj 
belonged to the first wave of Ukrainian architects involved in the search for 
Ukrainian traditional expressions, which led to the Ukrainian style. Hryhorii 
Pezhanskyy was a consultant in the construction of buildings for Ukrainian 
institutions in Lviv and numerous People's Houses.

In addition, Hryhorii Pezhanskyy designed a lot of People's Houses, 
buildings for Ukrainian institutions and churches. He also promoted the 
construction of theaters and musical facilities. The People's House in the 
Armenian Street designed by S. Havryshkevych and W. Schmidt in 1857 
was the first such building related to Ukrainian music and theater with 
H. Pezhanskyj’s contribution.

The Rus (Ukrainian) theater building was another landmark structure 
erected with Ivan Levynskyi’s and Hryhorii Pezhanskyj’s participation. The 
idea to build the theater was suggested by Julian Lavrivskyi in 1860s.

Hryhorii Pezhanskyj was involved in preparing plans to build the 
Ukrainian theater. It was in 1910 that a group of designers led by Ivan 
Levynskyi produced blueprints and a scale model of the Ukrainian theater 
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and presented it to the General Polish architectural exhibition. All this work 
faced resistance from the conservative-minded part of the Polish population 
of Lviv and Galicia. 

Hryhorii Pezhanskyj participated in the construction of the M. Lysenko 
Institute building in Lviv. The blueprints for the Institute facilities were 
drawn up by I. Levynskyi and architects of his office. The building was 
constructed during 1913–1916. The M. Lysenko Musical Institute played a 
crucial role in the life of the Ukrainian artistic community.

The Ukrainian community drew attention to the artistic sphere after 
a period of national liberation struggle that ended in defeat. A movement 
for a Ukrainian theater was launched in 1921 among other aspirations. It 
was the Ukrainska Besida society that took care of theatrical activities in 
Lviv in the very beginning.

An unprecedented campaign was waged in Lviv in support of Ukrainian 
theater feelings. The new Ukrainian idea was supported unconditionally 
from the very beginning not only by Ukrainian actors, but simply by people 
of art: architects, artists, priests, musicians etc.

H. Pezhanskyj, Ivan Turkevych and  M. Stefanivskyj were among 
the first members of the Ukrainian Theater cooperative that started the 
outstanding project. M. Halivej and Olexandr Mezhalskyj followed suit 
and joined the Ukrainian Theater cooperative. The constituent assembly 
of the new company, the Ukrainian Theater cooperative, was convened in 
1923. More and more Ukrainians joined the company. O. Drymalyk was 
the Director of the cooperative in 1923. He carried out energetic activities. 
Further development of the Ukrainian Theater cooperative was interrupted 
by the events before the Second World War.

Hryhorii Pezhanskyj struggled for Ukrainian musical and theatrical 
facilities for more than 50 years, and his role in those processes must be 
properly appreciated today.

At the same time Hryhorij Pezhanskyj was little known as the master 
builder in the area of Ukrainian sports life. He is credited with the construction 
of Ukraine's first football stadium that was built in 1894 on the grounds of 
the General National Exhibition of Galicia in Lviv. This construction was the 
beginning of the football age in the Ukrainian lands and Eastern European 
territories in the 20th century.


